
 
AMENDMENT #2: 2020-31019A NATIONAL URBAN INNOVATION PROJECT 
FEASIBILITY STUDY 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Feasibility Study for the National Urban 
Innovation Project is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet during the November 9, 2020 
India National Urban Innovation Project Feasibility Study Industry Webinar.  A recording of the 
webinar can be obtained by emailing RFP@ustda.gov.  Responses to questions asked during the 
webinar are attached. 
 
Can USTDA share the recording of the MOHUA Webinar? 
Yes. You can access the link to the session here: https://youtu.be/ArQ7IY1-mhk. 
 
Are non us companies allowed to compete for USTDA grants? 
No, however U.S. subsidiaries of foreign companies can bid on the RFP.  
 
Can grant funds be used to cover taxes? 
No. Grant funds cannot be used to pay taxes, duties, tariffs, except for taxes of a di minimis 
nature.  
 
Can USTDA nationality requirements be waved? 
No, they cannot. 80% of the work must be performed by individuals authorized to work in the 
U.S., while the remaining 20% can be performed by citizens in the host country.   
 
Can the RFP deadline be extended?  
The Submission date of Bid is extended to 25th November, 2020, 12 PM IST. 
 
For companies bidding on the RFP, is it acceptable to cite past projects using detailed 
description while omitting the name of the client for confidentiality?  
This is acceptable. The supporting document for the eligible assignment should be certified by 
the Statutory Auditor, as required and stated in Notes to Form 2 of the RFP 
 
 
Please clarify the number of projects to be submitted under section 4.2 of the RFP.   
Under sections 4.2.4 and 4.2.5, companies can submit 6 different projects. Projects submitted 
under each section can be the same or different.   
 
The RFP asks companies to submit the professional profiles of 7 key personnel in RFP. 
Will additional personnel submitted by bidding companies influence MoHUA’s evaluation 
of the bid?  
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For the purposes of evaluating proposals, MoHUA will only evaluate the 7 key personnel 
requested within the RFP. Additional staff can be included within the proposal, however they 
will not impact the final evaluation score.   
 
 
Will evaluations only be made based on the paper submission or will there be additional 
components such as interviews or presentations? 
At this time, MoHUA intends to only evaluate bidders according to their submissions under the 
RFP. Any decision to invite bidders to oral interviews would be made later in the evaluation 
process. However, evaluation of bids will be as per the evaluation criteria laid down in section 4 
of the RFP 
 
Will MoHUA be conducting interviews of key personnel? 
No.   
 
Does MoHUA have a preferred submission format for proposals?    
Please refer to Appendix 5 of the RFP containing Bid Forms. There is no specified format for 
Technical approach and Workplan, as specified in Section 4.1 
 
Are platforms under the initiative envisioned to be fully fledged transactional platforms or 
platforms to be used to share best practices and resources?  
Platforms are envisioned to be transactional in nature. The scope of the platforms can be 
increased and expanded in order to create functioning platforms that are more innovative, 
impactful, and transactional. Platforms can also aim to leverage existing platforms and resources 
to augment them or innovate upon them. MoHUA is open to other approaches to the platforms 
developed under the National Urban Innovation Stack.  
 
Will the selected contractor be asked to prepare RFPs for the platforms developed under 
the project?  
No, the scope of this phase of the project is to prepare a detailed project report and roadmap. The 
next phase would be to prepare the RFP, however that is not within the scope of work for this 
feasibility study.   
 
Does the Government of India feel that the resources currently in place within cities have 
the capacity to be upskilled, or is it envisioning hiring new workers?   
MoHUA believes that city workforces need new skills and re-skilling. The intention of the 
project is to create horizontal linkages across cities to share platforms, knowledge, best practices 
and facilitate capacity building. The project is thus intended to help cities share efficiencies 
through platforms and organizational development. The final National Urban Innovation Stack 
should provide a buffet of options that is demand driven so that cities can tailor the resources to 
their unique needs.  
 
For the areas that MoHUA believes there may be existing gaps within cities, such as in the 
area of data scientists, will MoHUA be weighing personnel in these areas more heavily than 
others in its evaluation?  



No, the intention of the final work product under the feasibility study will be to provide 
assessments of these gaps and to devise solutions to filling them.   
 
 
Regarding the India 100 Smart Cities Initiative, the initial phase targeted toward 20 
specific cities. Is MoHUA intending for the focus of the National Urban Innovation Project 
to be on these 20 cities, or is the scope more expansive?  
Bidders have complete freedom to choose the size and scope of their proposal as well as the 
number of cities referenced within the proposals.  

*** 
 

 


